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Atlantic Coun’ry Improvemeni Authority
1333 Atlantic Avenue, Suite 700 - Atlantic City, NJ 08401
Phone: 609-343-2390  Fax: 609-343-2188

June 6, 2016

John C. Lamey, .
Executive Director

Chairperson Foster and Authority Commissioners:

Presented to you are the audited financial statements for the 2015 year. There are separate financial statements for the
Administrative, Bond, Grant and Agency Funds, consistent with prior years. The financial statements are presented
separately for the Administrative Fund, each bond issue and each grant and agency fund because each is separate and
distinct.

The report is presented in three sections: introductory, financial and single audit. The introductory section consists of
this transmittal letter. The financial section includes the basic financial statements and schedules, management’s
discussion and analysis as well as the independent auditors’ report thereon, The Authority is required to undergo an
annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Information related to this single audit, including the auditors’ report on internal control
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations are included in the single
audit section of this report.

Government Auditing Standards and New Jersey statutes require that the Atlantic County Improvement Authority
publish a complete set of financial statements presented in conformance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. The financial
statements for the 2015 year are presented as required.

The Management Discussion & Analysis (“MD&A”) report consists of management’s representations concerning the
finances of the Administrative, Bonds, Grant, and Agency Funds. Management assumes full responsibility for the
completeness and reliability of all the information presented in the MD&A.

Regarding the reliability of the statements presented, a reasonable internal control framework and procedures exist to
protect the Authority’s assets from loss, theft or misuse. This internal control framework provides a basis that allows
staff to compile sufficient and reliable information for the preparation of the Authority’s financial statements in
conformity with GAAP and for the audit by the Authority’s independent auditor. Because the cost of internal controls
should not outweigh their benefits, the internal controls cannot provide an absolute assurance, but can provide
reasonable assurance as to the credibility and accuracy of the financial statements.

The Authority’s staff prepared the basic financial statements and the supplemental financial statements and schedules
as discussed above. Holman Frenia Allison, PC, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has audited and
opined on the Authority’s financial statements. The goal of an independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance as
to the validity of the financial statements. This involves examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing estimates and calculations utilized, assessing supplemental
information provided or gathered by the auditors and assessing the overall financial statements presentation. The
auditors have opined that the basic financial statements, which were prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Atlantic County Improvement Authority as of December 31, 2015.

Sincerely,

d

John C. Lamey, Jr., Executive Direct
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners of the
Atlantic County Improvement Authority

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of business-type activities of the Atlantic County
Improvement Authority, a component unit of the County of Atlantic, State of New Jersey, as of and for
the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which

collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and in compliance with audit standards prescribed by the Local
Finance Board and by the Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community Affairs,
State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Atlantic County Improvement
Authority, a component unit of the County of Atlantic, State of New Jersey, as of December 31, 2015 and
2014, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter
Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, during the year ended December 31, 2015, the
Authority adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an Amendment of GASB Statement No.27 and GASB Statement
No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedules relating to the Public
Employees Retirement System as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Atlantic County Improvement Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The accompanying introductory section and supplementary information contained in
schedules 2 through 28 are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information contained in



schedules 2 through 28 and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 6, 2016 on
our consideration of the Atlantic County Improvement Authority's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Atlantic
County Improvement Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Helmov, /’Z‘M'f‘) AL L on

HOLMAN FRENIA ALLISON, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

June 6, 2016
Toms River, New Jersey



ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
This section presents management's analysis of the Authority's financial condition and
activities for the year. This information should be read in conjunction with the financial

statements.

Financial Highlights

The following are key financial highlights:

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources at year-end were $26,198,924 and
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources in the amount of $505,983 (i.e.
net position).

e Unrestricted net position decreased $1,993,387 over fiscal year 2015. This was a
result of the Authority bringing a Net Pension Liability onto the financial statements to
comply with GASB #68.

e Operating revenues were $4,406,863, an increase from year 2014 in the amount of
$81,353. This resulted from an increase in Agency Fund Fees of $89,118 compared to
2014.

e Operating expenses increased $42,071 from 2014, which was a result of an increase
in professional fees and grant related expenses.

Overview of Annual Financial Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) serves as an introduction to, and should be
read in conjunction with, the basic audited financial statements and supplemental information.
The MD&A represents management's examination and analysis of the Authority's financial
condition and performance. Summary financial statement data, key financial and operational
indicators used in the Authority's budget, bond resolutions and other management tools were
used for this analysis.

The financial statements report information about the Authority using full accrual accounting
methods as utilized by similar business activities in the private sector. The financial
statements include a Statement of Net Position; a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position; a Statement of Cash Flows; and Notes to the Financial Statements.

The Statement of Financial Position presents the financial position of the Authority on a full
accrual historical cost basis. The Statement of Financial Position presents information on all
of the Authority's assets and liabilities with the difference reported as net positions. Over
time, increases and decreases in net positions are one indicator of whether the financial
position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.



While the Statement of Financial Position provides information about the nature and amount
of resources and obligations at year-end, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position presents the results of the business activities over the course of the
fiscal year and information as to how the net position changed during the year. All changes in
net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. This Statement also provides certain
information about the Authority's recovery of its costs.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from
operational, financing, and investing activities. This Statement presents cash receipts and
cash disbursement information, without consideration of the earnings event, when an
obligation arises, or depreciation of capital assets.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that
are essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the Statements. The Notes
present information about the Authority's accounting policies, significant account balances
and activities, material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and subsequent
events, if any.

Supplementary Information comparing the budget to actual expenses, as well as combining
statements are included to provide additional information to the reader of the financial
statements.

Summary of the Organization and Business

The Authority was created pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of Chosen
Freeholders of the County of Atlantic on February 8, 1961. The Authority is a component unit
of the County of Atlantic.

As a public body, under existing statute, the Authority is exempt from both federal and state
taxes.

The Authority has no taxing power. Operational costs are funded from fees charged for
Project Management, grant administration, mortgages and agency funds.

Financial Analysis

The following comparative condensed financial statements and other selected information
serve as the key financial data and indicators for management, monitoring and planning.
Comments regarding budget-to-actual variances and year-to-year variances are included in
each section by the name of the statement or account.



Condensed Financial Statements

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Cash and Investments
Current Assets (Less Cash)
And Capital Assets, Net
Noncurrent Assets:
Net Mortgage and Note Receivable
Net Lease Payments Receivable

Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pension

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities:
Other
Certificates of Participation
Bonds Payable
Net Pension Liability
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position:
Restricted or Net Invested in
Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position
Total Liabilities and Net Position

2015 2014 2013
644,013 6,119,410 6,187,986
3,7271571 2,975,331 6,974,991
21,573,070 22,326,028 23,282,632
- - 785,000
254,270 - -
26,198,924 31,420,769 37,230,609
1,738,910 8,392,596 7,273,408
100,130 85,826 106,870
- - 6,015,000
21,573,070 22,323,961 23,282,632
1,937,318 - -
343513 - -
25,692,941 30,802,383 36,677,910
1,904,584 23,600 7,241
(1,398,601) 594,786 545,458
505,983 618,386 552,699
26,198,924 31,420,769 37,230,609




Condensed Statement of Activities

2015 2014 2013

Actual Actual Actual
Revenues:
Fees $ 1,132,081 $ 819,114 $ 729,759
Grants 1,981,017 2,912,555 1,288,533
Other Revenues 1,293,765 593,841 448,984
Total Operating Revenues 4,406,863 4,325,510 2,467,276
Expenses:
Project Costs 1,741,271 2,832,122 998,111
Service Fees 239,746 80,433 290,422
Depreciation 29,047 920 801
General and Administrative 2,294,076 1,348,594 1,276,781
Total Operating Expenses 4,304,140 4,262,069 2,566,115
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 102,723 63,441 (98,839)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses), Net 1,901,545 2,246 (44,087)
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position $ 2,004,268 $ 65,687 $  (142,926)

General Trends and Significant Events

For 2015 the Authority continued to implement the Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG), the HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) and the Social Service Block
Grant (SSBG) on behalf of Atlantic County, perform project management services to the
County and other public entities, provide various services to other agencies, administer bond
issues, and undertake its other responsibilities, including management of the County’s Golf
Course and the Economic Development Initiative.

In January of 2015 the Authority assumed ownership of the 68 unit Barlinvis Apartment
Complex in Atlantic City and entered into an agreement with the Pleasantville Community
Development Corporation for its operation.

In September of 2015 Angeloueconomics completed the Atlantic County Economic

Development Strategy and Action Plan for the Authority and we continue to advance the
initiatives identified and play a leadership role in the Economic Development of the County.
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On January 19th, 2016 the Authority closed on a $12,000,000 loan from the Casino
Reinvestment Development Authority. The proceeds of the loan are funding the Authority’s
Boardwalk Improvement Project. One phase of the project consists of safety and security
components which include lighting improvements and security cameras. The second phase
consists of a 3-D Light Show components and operation of the Boardwalk Hall Light Show.
The revenue dedicated to paying the debt service for the loan is limited to the rent payments
due to Atlantic City from the privately funded Atlantic City Matrix Project. This loan is a non-
recourse loan to the Authority. Should revenue not be sufficient from the rent due to the City
from the Matrix Project the Authority has no obligation to make the payments.

GASB #68

As described in Note 16 to the financial statements, "Prior Period Adjustment/Restatement of
Net Position", the Authority has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, for the year ended December 31, 2015.
The adoption of this principle resulted in a restatement of the Authority’s opening net position
as of January 1, 2015 in the amount of $2,116,671. Prior year balances reflected in this
MD&A have been updated, for comparison purposes, to reflect the change where indicated.

Financial Condition

The Authority's financial condition remained strong at year-end with adequate liquid assets
and a reasonable level of unrestricted net assets. The current financial condition, support
staff capabilities and operating plans are well balanced and under control. The following
summarizes the Balance Sheet with comparisons to the prior year:

Total assets decreased $5.4 million or 16.6%. The decrease was primarily related to the
payment of the Atlantic County & Atlantic City Certificates of Participation.

Noncurrent assets decreased $897,611 or 4.02%.

Results of Operations

Operating Revenues: Revenues from operations fall into three general categories:
administrative fees, grants, and other.

In comparison with the prior year, grants decreased by $931,538 due to decrease in activity
for CDBG and SSBG in the current year as well as a large influx of monies drawn down from
the Economic Development fund in the prior year. However, the Agency fees for grant
administration increased by $89,118 in 2015.

Expenses: Total operating expenses of the Authority increased $42,071 from fiscal year 2014

primarily due to an increase in utilization of professional fees as a result of the
Economic/Redevelopment initiative in current year.

11



The following chart provides changes in system expenses with and without project costs and
service fees expenses.

2015
Operating Expenses:
Total $ 4,304
Excluding Project Costs 2,563
Excluding Project Costs, Service
Fees and Depreciation 2,294

Actual Amounts in 000's

2014 2013
$ 4,262 $ 2,566
1,430 1,568
1,349 1,278

The following table shows the composition of operating expenses by major classification of
expense for the last three years:

Salaries

Fringe & Payroll Taxes
Professional Services

Insurance

Project Costs
Service Fees

2015
$ 892,082 20.73%
355,792 8.27%
706,590 16.42%
86,605 2.01%
Rent & Administrative & General 253,007 5.88%
1,741,271  40.46%
239,746  5.57%
29,047  0.67%

Depreciation

Total

Actual Amounts

2014 2013
$ 785583 18.43% $ 744017 28.99%
271,929 6.38% 284930 11.10
143591 3.37% 100572 3.92
76,055 1.78% 84430 3.29
71436 1.68% 62832 245
2,832,122 66.45% 998,111 38.90
80433 1.89% 290422 11.32
920  0.02% 801  0.03

$ 4,304,140 100.00%

$ 4,262,069 100.00%

$ 2,566,115 100.00%

Cash Flow Activity

The following table shows the Authority's ability to generate net operating cash. Net cash
provided by operating activities is shown both in total dollars and as a percentage of
operating revenues.

2015
Total Operating Revenues $4,406,863
Net Cash Provided/ (Used)
by Operations 90,169
Net Operating Cash as a %
of Operating Revenue 2.05%

12

2014 2013
$4,325,510 $2,467,276
31,530 46,571
0.73% 1.89%



Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

By accepting the deed in lieu of foreclosure, the Authority assumed ownership of the 68 unit
Barlinvis Apartment Complex on January 23, 2015. The most recent appraisal performed in
late 2011 valued the asset at $1.9 Million based on the income approach.

The Authority has financed housing projects by issuing bonds, and public facilities through
bonds, certificates of participation, guaranteed notes, and mortgages.

In 2005, the Authority issued the ARC Bond; in 2006, the Faith Baptist Bond; and in 2007, St.
Augustine issued a $15,000,000 bond for the construction of certain school facilities to
include a multi-use facility containing a 1,500 seat gymnasium, swimming pool and other
athletic facilities. In March 2015, they refunded the bond not to exceed $12,500,000. At the
end of 2015, the Authority had a Guaranteed Note for the Egg Harbor Township Golf Course,
and mortgage-backed bonds from ARC, Faith Baptist and St. Augustine.

Each debt is paid off solely from the project financed by the proceeds of the debt. The Egg
Harbor Township Golf Corporation Guaranteed Note is paid from the Egg Harbor Township
Golf Corporation, plus interest on investments. The ARC, Faith Baptist and St. Augustine
Bonds are paid by ARC, Faith Baptist and St. Augustine mortgage payments.

No payments are made to the Authority; payments are made to the respective bond trustees
or bond holders. All investments are held by the bond trustees. The bond trustees also have
the primary responsibility of ensuring that all bond requirements are met. The bond trustees
also pay the interest on and principal of the Authority's debt. The Authority is responsible for
maintaining accounting records based on trust statements prepared by the trustees.

Contacting the Authority's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens of Atlantic County, clients, investors
and creditors, with a general overview of the Authority's finances and to demonstrate the
Authority's accountability. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact Mr. John Lamey, Executive Director, 1333 Atlantic Ave, Suite 700
Atlantic City, New Jersey 08401 or at 609-343-2390.
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Exhibit B
ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Operating Revenues:
Project Administration Fees $ 673,107 $ 439,925
Bond Fees 11,667 21,000
Grant and Agency Fund Fees 447,307 358,189
Grants 1,981,017 2,912,555
Reimbursement and Other 1,293,765 593,841
Total Operating Revenues 4,406,863 4,325,510
Operating Expenses:
Payroll Expenses 892,082 785,583
Employee Benefits 355,792 271,929
Rent 43,733 29,717
Professional Fees 706,590 143,591
Insurance 86,605 76,055
Administrative and General 209,274 41,719
Project Costs 1,741,271 2,832,122
Service Fees 239,746 80,433
Depreciation 29,047 920
Total Operating Expenses 4,304,140 4,262,069
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 102,723 63,441
Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses):
Investment and Interest Income 687,267 985,562
Lease Rental 55,105 382,831
Gain on Acquisition of Foreclosure 1,900,000 -
Bond and Note Interest Expense (740,827) (1,366,147)
Total Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses) 1,901,545 2,246
Change in Net Position 2,004,268 65,687
Total Net Position - Beginning of Year 618,386 552,699
Prior Period Restatement (see Note 16) (2,116,671) -
Total Net Position - Beginning of Year (1,498,285) 552,699
Total Net Position - End of Year $ 505,983 $ 618,386

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Exhibit C
Page 1 of 2

439,925
21,000
318,082
2,318,372
7,500
(1,208)
(780,249)
(273,402)
(29,717)
(149,824)
(76,055)
506,458
(2,269,352)

31,530

873

873

28,405
(51,008)
(5,655,000)
(77,966)
6,217,940
(563,350)

(100,979)

(68,576)

6,187,986

6,119,410

430,508
5,688,902

2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Project Administration Fees $ 671,302

Bond Fees 11,667

Grant and Agency Fees 350,792

Grants 1,941,718

Program Income -

Reimbursement and Other 594,141

Payroll Expenses (761,275)

Employee Benefits (220,493)

Rent (43,733)

Professional Fees (706,590)

Insurance (86,605)

Administrative and General 339,630

Cash Paid To Subcontractor and Vendors (2,000,385)
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 90,169
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Investment and Interest Income 720
Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 720
CASH FLOWS FLOWS CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Principal Payments Received on Mortgages 42,806

Mortgages Issued (38,661)

Principal Payments Made on Bonds (6,015,000)

Fees Paid To ACIA (81,150)

Lease Rental 816,932

Interest Paid on Bonds (292,504)
Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (5,566,286)
(Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (5,475,397)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 6,119,410
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 644,013
Reconciliation To Statements of Net Position:

Unrestricted Cash $ 499,157

Restricted Cash 144,856
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 644,013

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
1
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Reconciliation of Operating Deficit To Net Cash
Flows From Operating Activities:
Operating Income/(Loss) $ 86,810
Adjustments To Reconcile Operating Income To
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities;

Depreciation 29,047
Unbudgeted pension expense 147,767
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable (581,056)
(Decrease)/Increase in Accounts Payable 393,284
Decrease Due to Atlantic County 13
Increase in Accrued Sick and Vacation 14,304
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities $ 90,169

Exhibit C
Page 2 of 2

63,441

920

(775,932)
756,624
7,521

(21,044)

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit D
ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
Statements of Net Position - Agency Fund

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash $ 1,707,739 $ 1,949,148
Mortgage Interest Receivable 735,493 5,318,644
Accounts Receivable - Other 2,219 5,719
Mortgages Receivable 15,776,289 17,150,077
Mortgages Receivable - Valuation Allowance (16,459,835) (22,416,775)
Total Assets $ 1,761,905 $ 2,006,813
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 29,911 $ 36,352

Due To:
Various Agencies 1,731,994 1,970,461
Total Liabilities $ 1,761,905 $ 2,006,813

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION
General

The Atlantic County Improvement Authority, hereafter referred to as the "Authority," is a component unit
of the County of Atlantic, New Jersey, hereafter referred to as the "County," and was created pursuant to
a resolution adopted by the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County on February 8, 1961.

The Authority is a public body corporate and public, constituting a political subdivision of the State,
established to exercise public and essential governmental functions to provide for the public convenience,
benefit and welfare, by financing public facilities and certain housing developments within Atlantic
County. Under existing statute, the Authority is exempt from both Federal and State taxes.

The Authority assists in the financing of projects by issuing bonds. The bonds are paid by lease rentals
for certificates of participation, loan repayments on the Egg Harbor Township Golf Course bonds and
non-profit bonds

The Authority also administers various housing projects funded by the Atlantic City Development Fund.
The Authority also undertakes public facilities projects on behalf of governments, school districts and
other authorities. The Authority implements the Community Development Block Grant and HOME
Programs on behalf of Atlantic County and operates the County’s Golf Course. In 2014, a new initiative
being undertaken by the Authority was the economic development on behalf of the County.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

Reporting Entity

The Authority's financial statements include the accounts of all Authority operations. The Authority, as a
component unit of the County, is financially accountable to the County. The primary criterion for
including activities within the Authority's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of the GASB
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is whether:

the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

the Authority holds the corporate powers of the organization

the County Executive appoints the organization's board of commissioners

the Authority is able to impose its will on the organization

the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the Authority
there is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the Authority

VVYVVVYVY

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Authority has no component units.

The Authority, as a component unit, issues separate financial statements from the County.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of Financial Statements

The Authority’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) applicable to enterprise funds of State and Local
Governments on a going concern basis. The focus of enterprise funds is the measurement of economic
resources, that is, the determination of operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery),
financial position and cash flows. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible
for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Authority implemented the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71,
Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. GASB Statement Nos.
68 and 71 establish standards for measuring and recognizing net pension liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenses/expenditures related to pension benefits provided
through defined benefit pension plans. In addition, Statement No. 68 requires disclosure of information
related to pension benefits.

All activities of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. Proprietary
funds are used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the Authority is determined by its
measurement focus. The transactions of the Authority are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the
operations are included on the statements of net position. Net positions (i.e. total assets net of total
liabilities and total deferred inflow of resources) are segregated into "invested in capital assets, net of
related liabilities"; "restricted for capital activity and debt service"; and "unrestricted" components.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

An annual operating budget is required to be adopted and integrated into the accounting system to provide
budgetary control over revenues and expenditures in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:5A. The operating
budget adopted annually covers the Administrative Fund activity only. The current operating budget
details the Authority's plans to earn and expend funds for charges incurred for the operation, maintenance,
certain interest and general functions, and other charges for the fiscal year.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

State Unemployment Trust - accounts for amount withheld from employee wages in accordance with
State requirements, held for the purpose of paying unemployment claims to the State.

Agency Funds - The Agency Funds held by the Authority account for projects administered by the
Authority and assets held in the Authority's name on behalf of others. Cash, cash equivalents, and
investments held in these funds are considered restricted in accordance with the terms of the individual
contracts and agreements.

Bond Fund - The Bond Fund accounts for all assets and corresponding liabilities of the Authority as they
relate to the payment of debt service on outstanding loans and bond issues of the Authority. Reserves
established in connection with certain bond issues are included in this fund. The debt of the various bond
accounts is collateralized primarily by the respective facilities, reserves and revenues established within
each bond account. Assets of an individual bond account are restricted and not available to meet the
obligations of any other account or purpose.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent cash and investments maintained in accordance with bond resolutions, or grant
awards, or by agreement for the purpose of funding certain debt service payments.

Leave Policies

Vacation leave earned by Authority employees expires after one year. Accrued vacation is recorded in
the Administrative Fund and includes unused and unexpired vacation leave of the Authority's employees.
Accrued vacation is paid out at the employee's current rate when employment is terminated.

At retirement, employees of the Authority will be reimbursed for 50% of accrued sick leave up to 180
days with a maximum not to exceed $15,000. Retirement for this purpose is defined as follows:
a) 25 years of pensioned Authority employment; or
b) 20 years of pensioned Authority employment if the employee is at least 60 years of age at the
time of retirement.

Post-Retirement Benefits

In July 2004, GASB adopted Statement No. 45, "Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions.” This Statement became effective for entities on a
phased-in basis beginning with fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. This Statement requires
governmental entities to report the future cost of other post-employment benefits (“OPEB”) on a present-
value basis instead of the present "pay as you go” method. See note 14 for additional information.

The Authority will also pay up to three years' post-retirement health insurance premiums for the same
coverage the employee had before retirement, under the following conditions:

Post-retirement health insurance premiums will not be paid to the extent the employee or his/her

dependents are eligible for coverage afforded by the State in which they reside or the United States,
such as Federal Medicare Program.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

To be eligible for post-retirement health benefits, the employee must 1) have at least 10 years of
service with the Authority and retired on an ordinary disability pension; 2) have retired on accidental
disability; 3) have retired with 25 years of service with the Authority; or 4) have retired at the age of
62 or older with at least 15 years of service with the Authority.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014 the Authority has recorded $100,130 and $85,826, respectively, in
accrued sick & vacation leave liability and has not recorded a liability for post-retirement health
insurance.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the statement of net position, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
These estimates and assumptions include depreciation expense, the allowance for doubtful accounts and
certain claims and judgment liabilities, among other accounts. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed
periodically and the effects of revisions are reflected in the financial statements in the period they are
determined to be necessary. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Risks of Loss

The Authority purchases commercial insurance policies on an annual basis to handle risks of loss
associated with property, auto, liability, workers compensation, flood damage and employee crime
coverage. Any potential liability of the Authority with respect to loss claims would be equal to the
deductibles associated with policies and an event, which may exceed policy coverage limits.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include various checking and money market accounts, U.S. obligations and
certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less.

Purchase of investments is limited by N.J.S.A. 40A:5-15.1 to bonds or obligations of or guaranteed by the
Federal government and to bonds or other obligations of federal or local units. These investments are
required to have a maturity date not more than twelve months from the date of purchase.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been
satisfied and is recorded as a liability until the revenue is both measureable and the Authority is eligible to
realize the revenue.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Restricted

Restricted cash and cash equivalents and investments held by the Authority represent funds designated for
specific purposes and not available for general use.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other Asset Restrictions

In accordance with the terms of the various bond resolutions, substantially all of the assets of the
Authority are restricted. Although the financial statements are combined, each bond issue outstanding has
a designated investment security. None of the assets of any bond issue are available for the payment of
any other bond issue.

Net Position

Net position, represents the difference between summation of assets and deferred outflows of resources,
and the summation of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is classified in the
following three components:

o Net Investment in Capital Assets — This component represents capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, net of outstanding balances of borrowings used for acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

o Restricted — Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use
either through the enabling legislation adopted by the Authority or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

e Unrestricted — Net position is reported as unrestricted when it does not meet the criteria of the
other two components of net position.

Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time.

Mortgages Receivable

Mortgages receivable are stated at unpaid principal balances, less the allowance for loan losses as
estimated by management. These mortgages are deed restricted, and the Authority will not collect against
them unless the terms of the deed restriction are violated. The Authority does not anticipate any
violations in the terms, and therefore does not anticipate collections on those removed balances. The
allowance for loan losses recorded for mortgages receivable held as security for bond repayments or first
mortgages held in the Agency Fund at December 31, 2015 totaled $16,459,835.

The Authority's policy on income recognition on impaired loans is to record the entire change in loan

value during the year as bad debt expense or allowance for loan losses that otherwise would be reported.
All cash receipts are first applied to accrued interest.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Net Lease Payments Receivables

The Authority has various direct financing leases receivable, which are held as security and guarantee
repayment of certificates of participation outstanding. The receivable balances are reported net of
unearned income and balances held by the Authority for repayment of the debt issues.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at actual cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available, and are reported in the Administrative Fund. In connection with GASB Statement No. 34, the
Authority's policy is to capitalize assets with a cost of $1,000.

Capital assets consist primarily of buildings, furniture and equipment. The costs of normal maintenance
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the Authority are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
lives:

Buildings 40 years

Furniture and equipment 5 years

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was $29,047 and $920,
respectively.

Impact of Recently Issued Account Principles

Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 68
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — (Amendment to GASB Statement No. 27) and
GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement
Date. The implementation of the Statements requires the Authority to report as an asset and/or a
liability its portion of the collective net pension’s asset and liability of the New Jersey Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). The implementation of the Statements also requires the
Authority to report a deferred outflow and/or inflow for the effect of the net change in the Authority’s
proportion of the collective net pension asset and/or liability and difference during the measurement
period between the Authority’s contributions and its proportionate share of total contributions to the
pension systems not included in pension expense.

The Authority has adopted and implemented all current standards of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) that are applicable as of December 31, 2015.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

GASB has issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, effective for the year
ending December 31, 2016.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impact of Recently Issued Account Principles (continued)

GASB has issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-employment
Benefits Other than Pensions, effective for the year ending December 31, 2018. This Statement
replaces the requirements of Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
for Post- employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements
by Agency Employers and Agent Multi-Employer Plans, for OPEB Statement No. 74, Financial
Reporting for Post-employment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new accounting
and financial reporting requirements for OPEB Plans. GASB has issued Statement No. 76, The
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments, effective
for the year ending December 31, 2016.

The Authority will evaluate the impact each of these pronouncements may have on its financial
statements and will implement them as applicable and when material.

Subsequent Events

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred between December 31,
2015 and June 06, 2016, the date that the financial statements were issued for possible disclosure and
recognition in the financial statements, and no items have come to the attention of the Authority that
would require disclosure.

NOTE 3: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
government's deposits may not be returned to it. The Authority's policy is based on New Jersey Statutes
requiring cash be deposited only in New Jersey based banking institutions that participate in the New
Jersey Governmental Depository Protection Act (“GUDPA”) or in qualified investments established in
New Jersey Statutes 40A:5-15.1(a) that are treated as cash equivalents.

Carrying

Type Value
Deposits:

Demand Deposits $ 2,351,752
Total Deposits $2,351,752
Reconciliation of Statements of Net Position:

Governmental-Type Activity $ 644,013

Fiduciary Fund 1,707,739
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $2,351,752

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Authority's bank balance of $2,418,259 and $8,074,359,
respectively was not exposed to custodial credit risk. Of the bank balances, $509,566 and $757,521 was
covered by FDIC Insurance. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the remaining balances of $1,908,693
and $7,316,838 were collaterized in the Authority’s name under GUDPA.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 4: CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2015, follows:

Furniture Barlinvis Accumulated Fixed Assets
& Equipment Apartments Depreciation Net
Balance: January 1, 2015 $ 48,078 $ - $ 33,042 $ 15,036
Additions 9,108 1,900,000 29,047 1,880,061
Balance: December 31,2015 $ 57,186 $ 1,900,000 $ 62,089 $ 1,895,097
A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2014, follows:
Furniture Accumulated Fixed Assets
& Equipment Depreciation Net
Balance: January 1, 2014 $ 32,523 $ 32,122 $ 401
Additions 15,555 920 14,635
Balance: December 31,2014 $ 48,078 $ 33,042 $ 15,036

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Authority was involved in litigation concerning the
mortgage to Barlinvis Associates. Prior to this transaction, the amounts due and owed to the Authority in
order to satisfy the Second Mortgage comprised unpaid Principal in the amount of $1,600,000 and
accrued unpaid interest in the amount of $4,622,342 for an aggregate amount of $6,222,342. This
mortgage was second to a US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mortgage which
had been satisfied and discharged. The second mortgage was a no recourse mortgage secured by a 68 unit
affordable housing project situated at 2006 Beach Avenue in Atlantic City, New Jersey (the “Property”).

The Authority closed on the purchase of the Property on January 23, 2015 for $1. As of the date of
closing, Barlinvis Associates transferred to the Authority all funds on hand, with the exception of a
retainage of $65,000 to be held for a period of ninety days for the purpose of paying any prior incurred
obligations. Following closing, the litigation was dismissed with prejudice and the lien of the second
mortgage against the property was released but not satisfied.

The Authority plans to continue operating this Property as affordable housing to the residents of Atlantic
City.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 5: LEASE PAYMENT RECEIVABLE

The investment in direct financing leases as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, assuming related bonds
payable are held to maturity, is as follows:

2015 2014
Gross Lease Payments Receivable $ - $ 6,206,735
Less:
Unearned Income - (55,203)
Net Debt Service Funds - (5,334,600)
Subtotal - (5,389,803)
Net Lease Payments Receivable $ - $ 816,932

NOTE 6: MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE - BOND FUNDS

The following represents a summary of mortgages receivable held in Bond Funds:

2015 2014
Balance: January 1 $ 14,872,682 $ 15,440,482
Less: Repayments (492,560) (567,800)
Balance: December 31 $ 14,380,122 $ 14,872,682

The ARC of Atlantic County mortgage receivable balance as of December 31, 2015 was $1,576,369. The
original agreement earned interest at a rate of 3.93% with fixed monthly payments due to the Authority of
$12,653, maturing October 1, 2030. An amendment and restatement was executed on December 21,
2010, with an indicative swap interest rate of 3.25%. The “estimated” combined loan and swap monthly
payment is $9,300.00, per TD Bank. The payment fluctuates each month due to the number of days in
each month. This 2005 bond was amended and restated in accordance with the terms of the bond
documents supporting the mortgages.

The Faith Baptist Church mortgage receivable balance as of December 31, 2015 was $594,791 and earned
interest at a rate of 4.71% with interest-only payments due until May 2, 2007. Beginning at that time,
there will be 225 fixed monthly payments of $6,738.80 due to the Authority until January 2, 2026.

The St. Augustine mortgage receivable balance as of December 31, 2015 was $11,736,910 and earned
interest at a rate of 4.14%. The original agreement had interest-only payments due until it was converted
to a permanent mortgage on June 1, 2008. Beginning June 1, 2008, there are 300 fixed monthly payments
of $80,843.16 due to the Authority.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 6: MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE - BOND FUNDS (continued)

The following represents a summary of mortgages and interest receivable held in the Authority's Grant
Fund as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 which are considered impaired:

2015 2014
Mortgages Receivable - Schedule to be
Forgiven if Conditions are Met $ 8,181,327 $ 7,800,466
Total allowance for Loan Forgiveness (8,181,327) (7,800,466)
Net Loan Value: December 31 $ - $ -

NOTE 7: MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE - IMPAIRED ASSETS

The following represents the activity of the allowance for mortgage losses in the Grant Fund during 2015
and 2014:

2015 2014
Balance of Allowance for Mortgage

Receivable Losses January 1 $ 7,800,466 $ 7,367,401
Increases:

Allowance for Additional Mortgages 380,861 488,346
Subtotal Increases: 380,861 488,346
Subtotal: 8,181,327 7,855,747
Decreases:

Forgiven - (5,038)

Recoveries-Amounts Previously Reserved - (50,243)
Subtotal Decreases: - (55,281)
Balance of Allowance for Mortgage

Receivable Losses: December 31 $ 8,181,327 $ 7,800,466
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NOTE 7: MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE - IMPAIRED ASSETS (continued)

The following represents a summary of mortgages and interest receivable held in the Authority's Agency
Fund as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 which are considered impaired:

2015 2014
Mortgages Receivable - Collection:
Deemed Doubtful $ 16,511,782 $ 22,468,721
Total Allowance (16,459,835) (22,416,775)
Net Mortgage Receivable - December 31 $ 51,947 $ 51,946

The following table represents the ending balance of the allowance for mortgage losses in the Agency
Fund for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Balance of Allowance for Mortgage
Receivable Losses: December 31 $ 16,459,835 $ 22,416,775
Analysis of Balance:
Interest Receivable $ 735,493 $ 5,318,644
Mortgage Receivable 15,724,342 17,098,131
Balance: $ 16,459,835 $ 22,416,775
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NOTE 8: LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds, notes and certificates of participation outstanding consist of debt issued by the Authority for
specific projects or programs. The various obligations constitute debt of the Authority and are
collateralized primarily by the respective facilities, reserves and revenue established within each bond
fund. Assets of an individual bond fund are restricted and not available to meet the obligation of any
other fund or purpose. Bond indentures contain significant requirements for annual debt service and flow
of funds through various restricted accounts.

Eqqg Harbor Township Guaranteed Revenue Bonds

In 2000, the Authority issued bonds in the original amount of $10,880,000. The bonds are special and
limited obligations of the Authority, and the principal or redemption price of and interest on the Bonds are
payable from properties and funds pledged under the bond resolution ("Resolution™), and are secured by a
guaranty agreement with the Township of Egg Harbor dated as of September 1, 2000. The guaranty
agreement is authorized by a Township ordinance finally adopted July 26, 2000, requiring the Township
to pledge its full faith and credit to the punctual payment of the principal of and interest on the bonds so
that the debt service reserve fund (as defined in the Resolution) is maintained at the debt service reserve
fund requirement (as defined in the Resolution), to the extent that revenues or certain other funds under
the Resolution are not available to pay the principal of or interest on the bonds.

The proceeds of the bonds have been lent to the Egg Harbor Township Golf Corporation ("Golf
Corporation™) by the Authority, pursuant to a loan agreement dated as of September 1, 2000. The Golf
Corporation is a non-profit corporation and organized in accordance with Revenue Ruling 63-20, as
supplemented by Revenue Procedure 82-26, of the Internal Revenue Service. The Golf Corporation is a
component unit of the Township of Egg Harbor. The proceeds of the loan were used by the Golf
Corporation to finance: (i) the acquisition and construction of an eighteen-hole public golf course,
clubhouse, other golf-related facilities and the acquisition of the necessary equipment and supplies; (ii)
capitalized interest; (iii) a debt service reserve fund; and (iv) the cost to issue the bonds. The golf course
and clubhouse are located in the Township.

Egg Harbor Township Guaranteed Revenue Refunding Bonds

In 2006, the Authority issued refunding bonds in the original amount of $9,785,000, under amended loan
and guarantee documents. Bond proceeds were used to defease $9,145,000 of the 2000 bonds. The
statements of net position ending balances and the statements of revenues expenses and changes in net
position show only the 2006 Egg Harbor Township guaranteed revenue refunding bonds.

Egqg Harbor Township Golf Corporation Trustee Activity

The summary on the following page represents the Egg Harbor Township Golf Corporation's trustee
activity during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

32



ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 8: LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

2015 2014

Opening Cash and

Cash Equivalents - January 1: $ 1,163,944 $ 1,008,094
Increases:

Interest Earned 313 172

Payment from Egg Harbor

Township Golf Course 725,000 900,000

Subtotal Increases: 725,313 900,172
Revised Cash and Equivalents Balance: 1,889,257 1,908,266
Decreases:

Administrative Costs (17,598) (3,597)

Interest Paid (376,725) (390,725)

Principal Paid (365,000) (350,000)
Subtotal Decreases: (759,323) (744,322)
Ending Cash and

Cash Equivalents - December 31: $ 1,129,934 $ 1,163,944

The ARC of Atlantic County

On September 22, 2005, the Authority issued bonds in an original amount of $2,400,000 to provide funds
to purchase a building for the ARC of Atlantic County. The proceeds of the bonds have been lent to the
ARC of Atlantic County and are secured by a mortgage note dated September 22, 2005. Principal and
interest payments are due monthly. Variable interest rates were fixed for the first five-year period. A
refunding adjusted interest rates to an indicative swap interest rate of 3.25% as of December 21, 2010,
continuing through October 2030 in accordance with the bond issue documentation. A new amortization
schedule was presented to the Authority in early 2012 by TD Bank showing only principal payments.
Future interest payments are calculated monthly by TD bank based on the swap interest rate; however
interest shown in the schedule below is estimated at $2,700 per month based on 2013 payments to TD
Bank.

Faith Baptist Church

On September 22, 2006, the Authority issued bonds in an original amount of $1,000,000 to provide funds
for a portion of Faith Baptist Church building program in Pleasantville. The proceeds of the bonds have
been lent to the Faith Baptist Church and are secured by a mortgage note dated September 22, 2006.
Principal and interest payments are due monthly.
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NOTE 8: LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

St. Augustine Preparatory School

On January 5, 2007, the Authority issued bonds in an original amount of $15,000,000 to provide funds for
a portion of St. Augustine Preparatory School building program in Buena Vista. The proceeds of the
bonds have been lent to the St. Augustine Preparatory School and are secured by a mortgage note dated
January 5, 2007. On March 25, 2015 the bond was refunded in an amount not to exceed $12,500,000.

Total General Debt

Principal and interest requirements for remaining terms of the debt are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 996,705 $ 753,053 $ 1,749,758
2017 1,042,067 717,056 1,759,123
2018 1,081,645 680,298 1,761,943
2019 1,117,844 645,739 1,763,583
2020 1,161,735 610,309 1,772,044
2021-2025 13,106,273 2,321,932 15,428,205
2026-2030 3,918,853 625,225 4,544,078
$ 22,425,122 $ 6,353,612 $ 28,778,734

Atlantic City and Atlantic County Certificates of Participation

The Authority sold $72,210,000 certificates of participation in its leases with the City of Atlantic City
(which secured the 1985 City Public Facility Lease Rental Bonds) and Atlantic County (which secured
the 1986 County Public Facility Lease Rental Bonds) in 1991. Certificates of participation represent
proportionate interest in the fixed rental payments from these leases. Proceeds from the sale of these
certificates of participation were used to establish escrow accounts (with U.S. Government securities)
public facility lease rental bonds, and the 1985 County completion bonds. As a result of these
transactions, the bonds for these issues have been defeased and, accordingly, connection with the sales of
the Certificates of participation, net of any debt issuance costs, were paid to the lessees in 1991, in
accordance with the lease agreements. At the end of the lease terms and satisfaction of the certificates of
participation, the lessees may purchase the buildings from the Authority for $1. The Authority's liability
associated with these certificates of participation is limited to the associated lease revenue and income
thereon. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the certificates of participation were fully satisfied.
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NOTE 8: LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2015 consisted of the following:

Beginning Adustments/ Ending Due in
Balance Additions Payments Balance One Year
General $ 23,282,682 % - $ (857,560) $22,425122 $ 996,705
Certificates of Participation 6,015,000 - (6,015,000) - -
Net Pension Liability 1,661,797 275,521 - 1,937,318 -
Compensated Absences 85,826 14,304 - 100,130 -

$ 31,045,305 $ 289,825 $ (6,872,560) $ 24,462,570 $ 996,705

NOTE 9: PENSION OBLIGATIONS

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description - The State of New Jersey, Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division
of Pensions and Benefits (the Division). For additional information about PERS, please refer to Division's
Comprehensive  Annual Financial Report (CAFR)  which can be found at
www .state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annrprts.shtml.

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death and
disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after
25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS.

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

—

ier Definition

Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

c.n.boor\:u—\‘

Service retirement benefits of 1/55" of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to
tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service
retirement benefits of 1/60™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4
members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are
available to tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more
years of service credit and tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are
reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the age at which a
member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1 members
can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred
retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the
service retirement age for the respective tier.
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NOTE 9: PENSION OBLIGATIONS (continued)

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (continued)

Basis of Presentation - The schedules of employer allocations and the schedules of pension amounts by
employer (collectively, the Schedules) present amounts that are considered elements of the financial
statements of PERS or its participating employers. Accordingly, they do not purport to be a complete
presentation of the financial position or changes in financial position of PERS or the participating
employers. The amounts presented in the Schedules were prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. Such preparation requires management of PERS to make a number of
estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amounts. Due to the inherent nature of these estimates,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

Contributions - The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 15A and requires contributions by
active members and contributing employers. State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed
by the State. The State's pension contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which
includes the employer portion of the normal cost and an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability.
Funding for noncontributory group insurance benefits is based on actual claims paid. For fiscal year 2014
and 2013, the State's pension contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount.

The local employers' contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined rate which includes the
normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 provided an option for local employers
of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability contribution amounts certified for
payments due in State fiscal year 2009. Such employers will be credited with the full payment and any
such amounts will not be included in their unfunded liability. The actuaries will determine the unfunded
liability of those retirement systems, by employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability
contributions provided under this law. This unfunded liability will be paid by the employer in level annual
payments over a period of 15 years beginning with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012 and will be adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of assets.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/2015 $ 74,197 100% $ 1,937,318
12/31/2014 $ 73,171 100% $ 1,661,797
12/31/2013 $ 82,509 100% $ 2,092,838

Components of Net Pension Liability - At December 31, 2015, the Authority reported a liability of
$1,937,318 for its proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2015. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined using update procedures to roll forward the total pension liability from an actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2014, to the measurement date of June 30, 2015. The Authority’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on the Authority’s actual contributions to the plan relative to the total of all
participating employers’ contributions for the year ended June 30, 2015. The Authority’s proportion
measured as of June 30, 2015, was .00863%, which was a decrease of .00025% from its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2014.
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A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (continued)

Collective Balances at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

12/31/2015 12/31/2014
Acturial valuation date July 1, 2014 July 1, 2013
Deferred Outflows of Resources  $ 254270 $ 125,427
Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 343513 $ 433,959
Net Pension Liability $ 1937318 $ 1,661,797
Authority's portion of the Plan's
total net pension Liability 0.00863% 0.00888%

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - For the year ended December 31,
2015, the Authority recognized pension expense of $73,171. At December 31, 2015, the Authority
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Changes of assumptions $ 208,052 $ -

Net difference between expected and actual 46,218 -
experience

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 31,148

Changes in proportion and differences

between Authority contributions and proportionate

share of contributions - 312,365
Total $ 254,270 $ 343,513

$74,197 reported as pension payable resulting from the Authority’s contributions subsequent to the
measurement date (i.e. for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015, the plan measurement date is June
30, 2015) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31,
2015. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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NOTE 9: PENSION OBLIGATIONS (continued)

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (continued)

Year Ended June 30: PERS
2016 $ (29,367)
2017 (29,367)
2018 (29,367)
2019 (4,609)
2020 3,468
Thereafter -

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension asset/(liability) as of the measurement date was determined
by using an actuarial valuation as noted in the table below, with update procedures used to roll forward
the total pension liability to the measurement date. The actuarial valuations used the following actuarial
assumptions:

PERS
Measurement date June 30, 2015
Acturial valuation date July 1, 2014
Investment rate of return 7.90%
Salary increases: 2012-2021 - 2.15-4.40%

based on age
Thereafter - 3.15-5.40%
based on age
Inflation rate 3.04%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male or Female Mortality Tables (setback
1 year for females) for service retirement and beneficiaries of former members with adjustments for
mortality improvements from the base year of 2012. The RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Tables (setback 3
years for males and setback 1 year for females) are used to value disabled retirees. The actuarial
assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2011. It is likely that future experience will not exactly conform to
these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions, the emerging
liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the larger the
impact on future financial statements.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of
return on plan investments is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of
the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries.
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS's target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2015 are summarized in the following table:
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A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (continued)

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Cash 5.00% 1.04%
U.S. Treasuries 1.75% 1.64%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 1.79%
Mortgages 2.10% 1.62%
High Yield Bonds 2.00% 4.03%
Inflation-Indexed Bonds 1.50% 3.25%
Broad US Equities 27.25% 8.52%
Developed Foreign Equities 12.00% 6.88%
Emerging Market Equities 6.40% 10.00%
Private Equity 9.25% 12.41%
Hedge Funds/Absolute Return  12.00% 4.72%
Real Estate (Property) 2.00% 6.83%
Commodities 1.00% 5.32%
Global Debt ex US 3.50% -0.40%
REIT 4.25% 5.12%
Total 100%

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.90% as of June 30,
2015. The single blended discount rate was based on long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.90%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.80% as of June 30, 2015, based on the Bond Buyer
Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipals bonds with
an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made on the average of the last five years of contributions made in
relation to the last five years of recommended contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current
plan members through 2033. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was
applied to projected benefit payments through 2033, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected
benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Authority’s proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate - The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (3.90%) or 1-percentage-point higher (5.90%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(3.90%) Rate (4.90%) (5.90%)
Authority's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 2407849 $ 1937318 $ 1,542,828
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NOTE 10: CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Authority may periodically be named as a defendant in litigation. In
the opinion of management, supported by legal counsel, the impact of any such matters, if adversely
determined, would not have a material adverse effect on the financial statement or operations of the
Authority.

NOTE 11: COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Employees become eligible to receive sick leave in accordance with Note 2. The benefits are provided as
the lesser of $15,000 or 50% of accrued sick leave. Management estimates that the unrecorded balance of
accrued sick leave at December 31, 2015 and 2014, assuming all employees are eligible for accrued sick
leave at termination, is approximately $100,130 and $85,826, respectively.

NOTE 12: POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Authority has adopted GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
for Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions. This Statement requires governmental entities to
report the future cost of other post-employment benefits (“OPEB”) on a present-value basis which
changed to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994. The cost of these benefits is funded
through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. This would include the present
value at 5% of 3 years of insurance payments to all current employees assuming all will work until
eligibility, the contribution amount attributable to the Authority is available through the state pension
system.

NOTE 13: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The administrative operations of the Authority are dependent upon management agreements with various
governing bodies and agencies for projects in Atlantic County.

NOTE 14: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority leases its primary office space from the County under annual lease agreements. Rent
expense paid to the County during 2015 and 2014 was $43,733 and $29,717, respectively.

The Authority entered into an agreement with the County for the Authority to operate the John F. Gaffney
Green Tree Golf Course (“Golf Course™) effective June 1, 2007 for renewable one year term ending May
31, 2008. On July 14, 2008, the Authority and County amended the initial agreement to December 31,
2007 and enter into a renewal agreement for one year commencing January 1, 2008 and ending December
31, 2008. A renewed agreement was finalized on December 27, 2013 that was substantially comparable to
the previous agreement. The Authority will perform the day-to-day operation of the Golf Course
including the Golf Course’s pro shop and club house. All of the Golf Course equipment which is
currently owned by the County shall remain County property but shall be made available for the use and
benefit of the Authority. At the discretion of the County Treasurer, the Authority began makes one
annual payment of revenue and interest to the County, if net proceeds are available. The net revenue shall
be based upon the gross revenues of the Golf Course (including green fees, net pro shop sales, and any
other revenue generated in connection with Golf Course operations) less operating and management
expenses that are incurred by the Authority pursuant to the agreement. For 2015 and 2014, no payments
were made to the County, as net proceeds available as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, would need to be
utilized for additional expenses paid by the Golf Course under the Authority’s management.
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NOTE 15: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 19th, 2016 the Authority closed on a $12,000,000 loan from the Casino Reinvestment
Development Authority. The proceeds of the loan are funding the Authority’s Boardwalk Improvement
Project. One phase of the project consists of safety and security components which include lighting
improvements and security cameras. The second phase consists of a 3-D Light Show components and
operation of the Boardwalk Hall Light Show. The revenue dedicated to paying the debt service for the
loan is limited to the rent payments due to Atlantic City from the privately funded Atlantic City Matrix
Project. This loan is a non-recourse loan to the Authority. Should revenue not be sufficient from the rent
due to the City from the Matrix Project the Authority has no obligation to make the payments.

NOTE 16: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT/RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Net position as of January 1, 2015, has been restated as follows for the implementation of GASB

Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as amended by GASB Statement
No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date.

Governmental
Activities
Net Position as previously
reported at December 31, 2014 $ 618,386
Prior period adjustment -
Implementation of GASB 68:
Net Pension Liability (measurement date as of June 30, 2014) (1,661,797)
PERS Pension Payable (2015 Authority PERS Pension
Contribution) (73,171)
Deferred Outflows (measurement date as of June 30, 2014) 52,256
Deferred Inflows (measurement date as of June 30, 2014) (433,959)
Total prior period adjustment (2,116,671)
Net Position as restated, January 1, 2015 $ (1,498,285)
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY

Schedule of Appropriations Compared to Budget - Administrative Fund

Operating Revenues:
Project Administration Fees
Bond Fees
Grant and Agency Fund Fees
Reimbursement and Other

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Payroll Expenses
Employee Benefits
Rent
Professional Fees
Insurance
Administrative and General
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Other Income/(Expenses):
Investment Income
Additions to Reserves
Gain on Acquisition of Foreclosure

Total Other Income/(Expenses)

Net Income/(Loss)

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Schedule 1a

2015 Unexpended
2015 Final 2015 Balance/
Budget Budget Actual (Excess)
$ 430,500 $ 673,107 $ 673,107 $ -
14,000 11,667 11,667 -
572,366 447,307 447,307 -
1,541,426 1,293,765 1,293,765 -
2,558,292 2,425,846 2,425,846 -
1,030,885 892,082 892,082 -
485,590 371,705 371,705 -
29,717 43,733 43,733 -
847,850 706,590 706,590 -
75,000 86,605 86,605 -
75,700 209,274 209,274 -
- 5,297 29,047 (23,750)
2,544,742 2,315,286 2,339,036 (23,750)
400 622 622 -
(1,500) 923 923 -
- - 1,900,000 1,900,000
(1,100) 1,545 1,901,545 1,900,000
$ 12,450 $ 112,105 $ 1,988,355 $ 1,876,250
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Public Employees' Retirement System

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 1b

2015 2014 2013
Authority's proportion of the net pension liability
(asset) 0.00863% 0.00888% 0.01095%
Authority's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) $ 1,937,318 1,661,797 2,092,838
Authority's covered-employee payroll $ 687,836 558,071 588,636
Authority's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its
covered-employee payroll 281.65% 297.78% 355.54%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total pension liability 47.93% 52.08% 48.72%

**This schedule is presented to illistrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is available.
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Schedule of Authority Contributions
Public Employees' Retirement System
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 1c

2015 2014 2013
Contractually required contribution $ 74,197 $ 73,171 91,875
Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution 74,197 73,171 91,875
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - -
Authority's covered-employee payroll $ 687,836 $ 558,071 588,636
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 10.79% 13.11% 15.61%

**This schedule is presented to illistrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is available.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the year ended December 31, 2015

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Basis of Presentation. The amounts presented in the Schedules were prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. The numbers were derived in a report provided by KPMG dated April 14, 2016.
The full report is available by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pension and Benefits. Such preparation
requires management of PERS to make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amounts.
Due to the inherent nature of these estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Changes of benefit terms. The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides
retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits,
which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS.

Changes of assumptions. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female
Mortality Tables (setback 1 year for males and females) for service retirement and beneficiaries of former
members with adjustments for mortality improvements from the base year of 2012 based on Projection Scale AA.
The RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Tables (setback 3 years for males and setback 1 year for females) are used to
value disabled retirees. The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2011. It is likely that future experience will
not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions,
the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the larger the
impact on future financial statements.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY

Combining Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2015

Schedule 2

ASSETS
Administrative Bond Grant
Total Fund Fund Fund
Unrestricted Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash $ 499,157 $ 499,157 $ - $ -
Accounts Receivable 291,786 291,786 - -
Total Unrestricted Current Assets 790,943 790,943 - -
Restricted Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash 144,856 9,487 - 135,369
Interest Receivable 131,673 - 93,334 38,339
Accounts Receivable 299,445 115,365 - 184,080
Guaranteed Note Receivable 380,000 - 380,000 -
Note Receivable 257,518 - - 257,518
Mortgages Receivable 616,705 - 616,705 -
Total Restricted Current Assets 1,830,197 124,852 1,090,039 615,306
Non-Current Assets:
Mortgages Receivable 21,944,744 - 13,763,417 8,181,327
Valuation Allowance for Loan Losses (8,181,327) - - (8,181,327)
Guaranteed Note Receivable 7,665,000 - 7,665,000 -
Total Restricted Non-Current Assets 21,428,417 - 21,428,417 -
Total Restricted Assets 23,258,614 124,852 22,518,456 615,306
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 1,895,097 1,895,097 - -
Total Assets $ 25,944,654 $ 2,810,892 $ 22,518,456 $ 615,306

48



ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY

Combining Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2015

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Schedule 3

Administrative Bond Grant
Total Fund Fund Fund
Unrestricted Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 73,743 $ 73,743 $ - $ -
Unearned Program Income 131,127 - - 131,127
Total Unrestricted Current Liabilities 204,870 73,743 - 131,127
Restricted Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 218,600 30,278 - 188,322
Interest Payable 131,673 - 93,334 38,339
Notes Payable 257,518 - - 257,518
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 996,705 - 996,705 -
Total Current Liabilities Payable From
Restricted Assets 1,604,496 30,278 1,090,039 484,179
Long-Term Liabilities:
Accrued Sick and Vacation 100,130 100,130 - -
Bonds Payable 21,428,417 - 21,428,417 -
Total Long-Term Liabilities 21,528,547 100,130 21,428,417 -
Total Liabilities 23,337,913 204,151 22,518,456 615,306
Net Position:
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt 1,895,097 1,895,097 - -
Restricted for Capital Activity
and Debt Service 9,487 9,487 - -
Unrestricted 702,157 702,157 - -
Total Net Positions 2,606,741 2,606,741 - -
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 25944654 % 2,810,892 $ 22518456 % 615,306

49



20.'260'CT 859'819 0S€'299'T 9Y/'v0T'8 9G¥'81G'22 $
20.'160°CT 859'8t9 0S€'299'T 9v/'v0T'8 9G¥'81G'22
1G2'26G'TT 16.'765 69€'9/G'T 000'G99'/ LTY'82Y' 1
1S2'26G'TT 16.'765 69€'9/G'T - LTV'€9L'ET
- - - 000'G99'/L 000'G99'Z
Ghy'S0S 198'€S 186'06 . '6EY 6€0'060'T
v10'LLY L¥Z'TS 8€'88 - G0.'9T9
- - - 000'08€ 000'08€
1.€'82 029'C 165'C .'6G vEE'e6
- - - - - $
aunsnbny yoInyd Aunod 900¢ SaMI3S [e10L
1S 1sndeg onuepy 854n09 }109
Ureo j0 diysumo |
HY JogJaeH b3
S13SSV

¥ 9INPayds

GTOZ ‘T€ 18quuaded

spun4 puog - UonIsod 18N 10 1uswalels Buluiquwo)d

AISHIC M3IN DILNVILY 40 ALNNOD
ALIHOHLNY LNJINIAOHdINT ALNNOD DILNVILVY

S)asSY €101
S1aSSY/ PaloINsay |10l
S19SSY/ 1USLIND-UON Palolsay [e10L

3|qeAladay sabebrion
9]1eAI09Y 810N pasiuesens)
:S19SSY/ JUa1IND-UON

S19SSV Jualin) PaldlilISay |elo |

3|geAladay sabeblon
9]0eAIS09Y 910N pasiuelenc)
9]eAI29Y 158491U]
ysed
:S19SSY/ JUaIIND
:S19SSY PaloLIISey

50



20.'260CT ¢  899'8¥9 $  0G€'/99'T $  9v.'VOT'8 $  9S¥'81S'CC $
/ST'Z6S'TT T6.'76S 69€'9/G'T 000'G99'/L LTY'82Y' 12
1ST'T6S'TT 16.'76S 69£'9/G'T 000'G99'/ LTY'82Y' 12
Gh'S0S 198'€S 186'06 o/ '6EY 6£0'060'T
v10'LLY L¥T'TS 8€'88 000'08€ G0.'966
12£'82 $ 029 $  16S'C $  9vL'6S $  vEEC'eh $
aunsnbny yoInyo Auno) 900¢ S9H3S [e10L
1S 1sndeg onuepy 854n0Q }109
Ureo j0 diysumo |
o4V JogueH 663
SERIENR

§ 8INPayds

GTO0Z 'T€ 48qusdsgd
spun4 puog - UonIsod 18N 10 1uswalels Buluiquwo)d

A3ISHAC M3IN DILNVILY 40 ALNNOD
ALIHOHLNY LNJINIAOHdINT ALNNOD DILNVILVY

sen|igel] [e10L

san[iqel wis-buoT feloL

3|qeAed spuog

'sanI|IgeT wius L -BuoT

S19SSY PaloLIsay

wold ajqehed sanjigel JuaLng [eloL

109Q W31 -BuoT Jo uoniod uaun)d

3|geAed 1saJa1U]
:Sa11jIqeIT JUBLIND
-Sa11|IqelT palolisey

51



Schedule 6
ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
Combining Statement of Net Position - Grant Funds

December 31, 2015

ASSETS
HOME Other
Total CDBG Funds SSBG Funds
Restricted Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash $ 135,369 $ 33,450 $ 90,770 $ 34 $ 11,115
Accounts Receivable 184,080 96,424 53,195 34,461 -
Interest Receivable 38,339 - - - 38,339
Notes Receivable 257,518 - - - 257,518
Total Restricted Current Assets 615,306 129,874 143,965 34,495 306,972
Non-Current Assets:
Mortgages Receivable 8,181,327 1,253,718 6,827,684 - 99,925
Valuation Allowance for Loan Losses (8,181,327) (1,253,718) (6,827,684) - (99,925)
Total Restricted Non-Current Assets - - - - -
Total Restricted Assets 615,306 129,874 143,965 34,495 306,972
Total Assets $ 615,306 $ 129,874 $ 143,965 $ 34,495 $ 306,972
LIABILITIES

Restricted Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses  $ 188,322 $ 100,582 $ 53,245 $ 34,495 $ -
Unearned Program Income 131,127 29,292 90,720 - 11,115

Interest Payable 38,339 - - - 38,339
Notes Payable 257,518 - - - 257,518
Total Current Liabilities Payable
From Restricted Assets 615,306 129,874 143,965 34,495 306,972
Total Liabilities $ 615,306 $ 129,874 $ 143,965 $ 34,495 $ 306,972
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Schedule 9
ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
Combining Statement of Net Position - Grant Funds - SSBG

December 31, 2015

Total SSBG
ASSETS
Cash $ 34 $ 34
Accounts Receivable 34,461 34,461
Total Assets $ 34,495 $ 34,495
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 34,495 $ 34,495
Total Liabilities $ 34,495 $ 34,495

55



Schedule 10
ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
Combining Statement of Net Position - Grant Funds - Other

December 31, 2015

Economic Jobs
Total Development USDA Bill
ASSETS
Cash $ 11,115 $ - $ 6,475 $ 4,640
Interest Receivable 38,339 38,339 - -
Notes Receivable 257,518 257,518 - -
Mortgages Receivable 99,925 - 51,045 48,880
Mortgages Receivable Valuation Allowance (99,925) - (51,045) (48,880)
Total Assets $ 306,972 $ 295,857 $ 6,475 $ 4,640
LIABILITIES
Unearned Program Income $ 11,115 $ - $ 6,475 $ 4,640
Interest Payable 38,339 38,339 - -
Notes Payable 257,518 257,518 - -
Total Liabilities $ 306,972 $ 295,857 $ 6,475 $ 4,640
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY

Combining Statement of Net Position - Agency Funds

December 31, 2015

Schedule 11

Housing
Projects Other Mortgages Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 1,191,944 $ 365,466 $ 150,329 1,707,739
Mortgage Interest Receivable 85,300 - 650,193 735,493
Accounts Receivable - Other - 2,219 2,219
Mortgages Receivable 3,160,240 - 12,616,049 15,776,289
Mortgages Receivable Valuation Allowance (3,193,593) - (13,266,242) (16,459,835)
Total Assets $ 1,243,891 $ 367,685 $ 150,329 1,761,905
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 27,331 $ 2,269 $ 311 29,911
Due To Various Agencies 1,216,560 365,416 150,018 1,731,994
Total Liabilities $ 1,243,891 $ 367,685 $ 150,329 1,761,905
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

Operating Revenues:
Project Administration Fees
Bond Fees
Grant and Agency Fund Fees
Grants
Reimbursement and Other

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Payroll Expenses
Employee Benefits
Rent
Professional Fees
Insurance
Administrative and General
Project Costs
Service Fees
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses):
Investment and Interest Income
Additions to Reserves-NJCM & SUI
Gain on Acquisition of Foreclosure
Lease Rental
Bond and Note Interest Expense

Total Non-Operating
Revenues/(Expenses)

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Positions
Net Positions - Beginning of Year

Net Positons - End of Year

COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY

Combining Statement of Activities

December 31, 2015

Schedule 15

Administrative Bond Grant
Total Fund Fund Fund
$ 673,107 $ 673,107 - $ -
11,667 11,667 - -
447,307 447,307 - -
1,981,017 - - 1,981,017
1,293,765 1,293,765 - -
4,406,863 2,425,846 - 1,981,017
892,082 892,082 - -
371,705 371,705 - -
43,733 43,733 - -
706,590 706,590 - -
86,605 86,605 - -
209,274 209,274 - R
1,741,271 - - 1,741,271
239,746 - - 239,746
29,047 29,047 - R
4,320,053 2,339,036 - 1,981,017
86,810 86,810 - -
686,344 622 685,722 -
923 923 - -
1,900,000 1,900,000 - -
55,105 - 55,105 -
(740,827) - (740,827) -
1,901,545 1,901,545 - -
1,988,355 1,988,355 - -
618,386 618,386 - -
$ 2,606,741 $ 2,606,741 - $ -
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Operating Revenues:
Grants
Program Income
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Project Costs
Service Fees
Total Operating Expenses
Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of Year

Net Position - End of Year

ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY

Combining Statement of Activities - Grant Fund

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Schedule 17

HOME Other

Total CDBG Funds SSBG Funds
$ 1,941,718 $ 1,062,645 $ 602,157 276,916 -
39,299 - 39,299 - -
1,981,017 1,062,645 641,456 276,916 -
1,741,271 824,828 639,527 276,916 -
239,746 237,817 1,929 - -
1,981,017 1,062,645 641,456 276,916 -
$ - $ - $ - - -
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Schedule 20
ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY

Combining Statement of Activities - Grant Fund - SSBG

For the year ended December 31, 2015

SSBG
Sandy Relief
Funding Total
Operating Revenues:
Grants $ 276,916 $ 276,916
Program Income - -

Total Operating Revenues 276,916 276,916

Operating Expenses:
Project Costs 276,916 276,916
Fees Paid To ACIA - -

Total Operating Expenses 276,916 276,916

Change in Net Position - -

Net Position - Beginning of Year - -

Net Position - End of Year $ - $ -
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Schedule 22

Administrative Bond Grant
Total Fund Fund Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Project Administration Fees $ 671,302 $ 671,302 - $ -

Bond Fees 11,667 11,667 - -

Grant and Agency Fees 350,792 350,792 - -

Grants 1,941,718 - - 1,941,718

Program Income - - - -

Reimbursement and Other 594,141 594,141 - -

Payroll Expenses (761,275) (761,275) - -

Employee Benefits (220,493) (220,493) - -

Rent (43,733) (43,733) - -

Professional Fees (706,590) (706,590) - -

Insurance (86,605) (86,605) - -

Administrative and General 339,630 339,630 - -

Cash Paid To Subcontractor and Vendors (2,000,385) - - (2,000,385)
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 90,169 148,836 - (58,667)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Investment and Interest Income 720 622 98 -
Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 720 622 98 -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Principal Payments Received on Mortgages 42,806 - - 42,806

Mortgages Issued (38,661) - - (38,661)

Principal Payments Made on Bonds (6,015,000) - (6,015,000) -

Fees Paid To ACIA (81,150) (79,886) - (1,264)

Lease Rental 816,932 - 816,932 -

Interest Paid on Bonds (292,504) - (292,504) -
Net Cash Flows From Capital

and Related Financing Activities (5,566,286) (79,886) (5,490,572) 4,172
Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (5,475,397) 69,572 (5,490,474) (54,495)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 6,119,410 439,072 5,490,474 189,864
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 644,013 $ 508,644 - $ 135,369
Reconciliation To Statements of Net Position:

Unrestricted Cash $ 499,157 $ 499,157 - $ -

Restricted Cash 144,856 9,487 - 135,369

$ 644,013 $ 508,644 - $ 135,369
Reconciliation of Operating Deficit To Net Cash
Flows From Operating Activities:
Operating Income $ 86,810 $ 86,810 - $ -
Adjustments To Reconcile Operating Income To
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Depreciation 29,047 29,047 - -
Unbudgeted pension expense 147,767 147,767 - -
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable (581,056) (797,944) - 216,888
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable 393,284 668,852 - (275,568)
Decrease in Due To Atlantic County 13 - - 13
Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued Sick and Vacation 14,304 14,304 - -
$ 90,169 $ 148,836 - $ (58,667)
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
Statement of Cash Flows - Bond Fund

For the year ended December 31, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment and Interest Income

Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal Payments Made on Mortgages/Bonds
Lease Rental
Interest Paid on Bonds

Net Cash Flows From Capital
and Related Financing Activities

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

Reconciliation To Statements of Net Position:
Restricted Cash

Reconciliation of Operating Deficit To Net Cash
Flows From Operating Activities:
Operating Income/(Loss)
Adjustments To Reconcile Operating Income To
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Decrease in Accounts Payable

Atlantic City
Certificate of
Participation

Schedule 23

Atlantic County
Certificate of
Participation

Total Series 1991 Series 1991
$ 98 $ 2 $ 96
98 2 96
(6,015,000) $ (785,000) (5,230,000)
816,932 816,932 -
(292,504) (31,934) (260,570)
(5,490,572) (2) (5,490,570)
(5,490,474) - (5,490,474)
5,490,474 - 5,490,474
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ $
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
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Schedule 24
ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
Statement of Cash Flows - Grant Fund

For the year ended December 31, 2015

HOME Other
Total CDBG Funds SSBG Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Grants $ 1,941,718 $ 1,062,645 $ 602,157 $ 276,916 $ -
Program Income - - - - -
Cash Paid To Subcontractors and Vendors (2,000,385) (1,095,946) (602,477) (301,962) -
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (58,667) (33,301) (320) (25,046) -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal Payments Received on Mortgages 42,806 3,213 39,576 - 17
Mortgages Issued (38,661) - (38,661) - -
Fees Paid To ACIA (1,264) (626) (638) - -
Net Cash Flows From Capital
and Related Financing Activities 4,172 2,587 1,568 - 17
Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (54,495) (30,714) 1,248 (25,046) 17
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 189,864 64,164 89,522 25,080 11,098
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 135,369 $ 33,450 $ 90,770 $ 34 $ 11,115
Reconciliation To Statements of Net Position:
Restricted Cash $ 135,369 $ 33,450 $ 90,770 $ 34 $ 11,115
Reconciliation of Operating Deficit To Net Cash
Flows From Operating Activities:
Operating Income/(Loss) - - - - -
Adjustments To Reconcile Operating Income To
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Receivable $ 216,888 $ 238,519 $ (21,858) $ 227 $ -
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable (275,568) (271,820) 21,538 (25,286) -
Increase/(Decrease) in Due To Various Agencies 13 - - 13 -
$ (58,667) $ (33,301) $ (320) $ (25,046) $ -
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
Statement of Cash Flows - Grant Fund - SSBG

For the year ended December 31, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Grants
Cash Paid To Subcontractors and Vendors

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal Payments Received on Mortgages
Fees Paid To ACIA

Net Cash Flows From Capital
and Related Financing Activities

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

Reconciliation To Statements of Net Position:
Restricted Cash

Reconciliation of Operating Deficit To Net Cash
Flows From Operating Activities:
Operating Income/(Loss)
Adjustments To Reconcile Operating Income To
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Receivable
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in Due To Various Agencies
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Schedule 27

SSBG
Sandy Relief
Total Funding

276,916 $ 276,916
(301,962) (301,962)
(25,046) (25,046)
(25,046) (25,046)
25,080 25,080
34 $ 34

34 $ 34

227 $ 227
(25,286) (25,286)
13 13
(25,046) % (25,046)




ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY

Statement of Cash Flows - Grant Fund - Other

For the year ended December 31, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal Payments Received on Mortgages
Payments Paid on Loans
Payments Received on Loans

Net Cash Flows From Capital
and Related Financing Activities

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

Reconciliation To Statements of Net Position:
Restricted Cash

Reconciliation of Operating Deficit To Net Cash
Flows From Operating Activities:
Operating Income/(Loss)
Adjustments To Reconcile Operating Income To
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable

Schedule 28

Economic

Total Development USDA Jobs Bill

$ 17 3 - - $ 17
23,988 23,988 - -
(23,988) (23,988) - -

17 - - 17

17 - - 17

11,098 - 6,475 $ 4,623

$ 11,115 $ - 6,475 $ 4,640

$ 11,115 $ - 6,475 $ 4,640
$ (295,857) $ (295,857) - $ -
295,857 295,857 - -
$ - $ - - $ -
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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I I I 680 Hooper Avenue, Bldg B, Suite 201, Toms River, NJ 08753

618 Stokes Road, Medford, NJ 08055
912 Highway 33, Suite 2, Freehold, NJ 07728

HOLMAN | FRENIA 6 E. Park Street, P.O. Box 614, Bordentown, NJ 08505
ALL[SON, PC 795 Canton Street, Troy, PA 16947
Certified Public Accountants & Consultants 926 Main Street, Suite 103, Rome, PA 18837

* Tel: 732.797.1333
* Tel: 609.953.0612
* Tel: 732.409.0800
* Tel: 609.298.8639
* Tel: 570.297.5090
* Tel: 570.297.5090
www.hfacpas.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Commissioners of
Atlantic County Improvement Authority

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by Local
Finance Board and by the Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community Affairs,
State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Authority as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 6,
2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Authority's internal
control over financial reporting internal control to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Authority’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of honcompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards or audit requirements
as prescribed by the Local Finance Board and by the Division of Local Government Services,
Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Audit Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ol /’f‘f‘ﬂ"‘) ALLreors

HOLMAN FRENIA ALLISON, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

June 6, 2016
Toms River, New Jersey
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Commissioners of the
Atlantic County Improvement Authority

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal

We have audited Atlantic County Improvement Authority’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of Atlantic County Improvement Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2015. Atlantic County Improvement Authority’s major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

and

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Atlantic County Improvement
Authority’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test

basis, evidence about Atlantic County Improvement Authority’s compliance with those requirements
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

and

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Atlantic County

Improvement Authority’s compliance with those requirements.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Atlantic County Improvement Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its

major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2015.

78


rchandran
Letterhead with Bordentown


Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with uniform guidance.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Atlantic County Improvement Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Atlantic County Improvement
Authority’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Atlantic County Improvement
Authority’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Hlrn, FZein, A Jyon

HOLMAN FRENIA ALLISON, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

June 6, 2016
Toms River, New Jersey
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the year ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 1: GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity of all federal
financial assistance programs of the Atlantic County Improvement Authority. The Authority is
defined in Note 1 of the general purpose financial statements.

NOTE 2: BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
the Authority and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with amounts reported in the Authority’s
general-purpose financial statements.

Eederal
Grants $ 1,981,017
Less: Program Income (39,299)
Total Financial Assistance $ 1941718

NOTE 4: RELATIONSHIP TO THE FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with amounts reported in the related Federal
financial reports.

NOTE 5: NON-CASH FEDERAL ASSISTANCE

The Authority did not receive any non-cash Federal assistance for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015

Section I — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements:

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness(es) Identified? None Noted
2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? None Noted
Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted? None Noted
Federal Awards:
Dollar threshold used to determine Type A Programs $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk Auditee? Yes
Type of auditors' report on compliance for major programs Unmodified
Internal Control over compliance:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? None Noted
2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? None Noted
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
With 2 CFR 200 - Uniform Guidance § 200-516? None Noted
Identification of major programs:
C.F.DA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.218 Community Development Block Grant
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2015

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

This schedule identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses and instances of noncompliance
related to the basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of
Government Auditing Standards.

No Current Year Findings

Section 11 — Federal Awards Finding & Questioned Costs

This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses and instances of noncompliance,
including questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal programs, as required by Uniform Guidance.

No Current Year Findings
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ATLANTIC COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015

This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses and instances of noncompliance,
including questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by Uniform
Guidance.

No Prior Year Findings
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GENERAL COMMENTS & RECOMMENDATIONS
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I | I 680 Hooper Avenue, Bldg B, Suite 201, Toms River, NJ 08753 « Tel: 732.797.1333

618 Stokes Road, Medford, NJ 08055 ¢ Tel: 609.953.0612
912 Highway 33, Suite 2, Freehold, NJ 07728 ¢ Tel: 732.409.0800

HOLMAN | FRENIA 6 E. Park Street, P.O. Box 614, Bordentown, NJ 08505 » Tel: 609.298.8639
ALLISON, PC. 795 Canton Street, Troy, PA 16947 « Tel: 570.297.5090
Certified Public Accountants & Consultants 926 Main Street, Suite 103, Rome, PA 18837 « Tel: 570.297.5090

www.hfacpas.com

To the Board of Commissioners of the
Atlantic County Improvement Authority
Atlantic City, New Jersey 08401

We have audited the financial accounts and transactions of the Atlantic County Improvement Authority, a
component unit of the County of Atlantic, State of New Jersey for the year ended December 31, 2015. In
accordance with requirements prescribed by the Local Finance Board and by the Division of Local
Government Services, Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey, the following are the
General Comments and Recommendations for the year then ended.

GENERAL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Contracts and Agreements Required to be Advertised by (N.J.S.A.40A:11-4)

N.J.S.A.40A:11-4 - Every contract or agreement, for the performance of any work or furnishing or hiring
of any materials or supplies, the cost or the contract price whereof is to be paid with or out of public funds
not included within the terms of Section 3 of this act, shall be made or awarded only by the governing
body of the contracting unit after public advertising for bids and bidding therefore, except as is provided
otherwise in this act or specifically by any other Law. No work, materials or supplies shall be
undertaken, acquired or furnished for a sum exceeding in the aggregate $17,500 except by contract or
agreement.

It is pointed out that the Members of the Authority have the responsibility of determining whether the
expenditures in any category will exceed the statutory minimum within the fiscal year. Where question
arises as to whether any contract or agreement might result in violation of the statute, the solicitor's
opinion should be sought before a commitment is made.

The minutes indicate that bids were requested by public advertising.

The minutes indicate that resolutions were adopted authorizing the awarding of contracts or agreements
for "Professional Services," per N.J.S.A.40A:11-5.

Inasmuch as the system of records did not provide for an accumulation of payments for categories for the
performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies, the results of such an
accumulation could not reasonably be ascertained. Disbursements were reviewed, however, to determine
whether any clear-cut violations existed. The results or our examination did not disclose any
discrepancies.
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Contracts and Agreements Requiring Solicitation of Quotations

The examination of expenditures revealed individual payments, contracts or agreements in excess of
$2,625 "for the performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies"”, other
than those where bids had been previously sought by public advertisement or where a resolution had been
previously adopted under the provision of (N.J.S.A.40A:11-6.1).

The minutes indicate that quotes were requested for all items that required them.

Examination of Bills

A test check of paid bills was made and each bill, upon proper approval, was considered as a separate and
individual contract unless the records disclosed it to be a part payment or estimate. The results of the
examination did not disclose any discrepancies with respect to signatures, certification or supporting
documentation.

Payroll Account

The examination of the payroll account included the detailed computation of various deductions or other
credits from the payroll of the Authority employees and ascertained that the accumulated withholdings
were disbursed to the proper agencies.

Follow-up on Prior Years' Findings

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have included a review of all prior year findings.
There were no findings in the prior year.

Acknowledgment

We received the complete cooperation of all the Authority officials and employees and we greatly
appreciate the courtesies extended to the members of the audit team.

Any problems and weaknesses noted in our review were not of such magnitude that they would affect our
ability to express an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.

Should you have any questions, or should you desire any additional assistance, please call us.

Helrm, R enity AL on

HOLMAN FRENIA ALLISON, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
June 6, 2016
Toms River, New Jersey
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